UNITED STATES -

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY = 3 .
ATLANTA, GEORGIA Lo R r“ .
[ ™ :
In the Matter of: [P v
Mullis and Griffin Properties, Docket No. TSCA—04-2009-26§(b) ; o
2

d/b/a North Napier Apartments

Respondent.

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

I. Nature of the Action

This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Toxic Substances

Control Act (TSCA), 15 U.S.C. § 2615(a), and pursuant to the Consolidated Rules of

Practice Governing Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the

Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated Rules), 40 C.F.R.

Part 22. Complainant is the Director of the Air, Pesticides, and Toxics Management

Division, United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 (EPA).
Respondent is Mullis and Griffin Properties, d/b/a North Napier Apartments.

2. Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement pursuant to
40 C.F.R. § 22.18, and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations described
herein without a formal hearing. Therefore, without the taking of any evidence or
testimony, the making of any argument, or the adjudication of any issue in this matter,
and in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order

(CAFO) will simultaneously commence and conclude this matter.



II. Preliminary Statements

3. The Administrator of EPA promulgated regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart F
under the authority of Section 1018 of the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard
Reduction Act of 1992, 42 U.S.C. § 4852d. Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 4852d(b)(5), a
violation of any rule in 40 C.F.R. Part 745, is a prohibited act under Section 409 of
TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2689. Any person who violates Section 409 of TSCA may be
assessed a penalty of up to $10,000 for each such violation, in accordance with Section
16(a) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615(a) and Section 1018. For a violation occurring after
January 31, 1997, a penalty of up to $11,000 may be assessed pursuant to 40 C.F.R. Part
19, as amended, and in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 745.118(D).

4. The authority to take action under Section 16(a) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615(a), is vested
in the Administrator of EPA. The Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority
under TSCA to EPA Region 4 by EPA Delegation 12-2-A, dated May 11, 1994,

5. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.5(c)(4), the following individual represents EPA in this matter
and is authorized to receive service for EPA in this proceeding:

Kevin L. Woodruff

Lead and Children's Health
Management Section

U.S. EPA Region 4

61 Forsyth Street

Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960
(404) 562-8828.

II1. Specific Allegations
6. Respondent is a Lessor, as defined at 40 C.F.R. § 745.103, of residential housing located
at 4017 Napier Avenue, Apartments 21B and 4A, in Macon, Georgia. These apartment

units are “target housing,” as defined at 40 C.F.R. § 745.103.
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7. Based on information obtained by EPA on or about April 27, 2007, relating to
Respondent’s contracts to lease its target housing described above, EPA alleges that
Respondent violated Section 409 of TSCA and 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart F, as follows:
a. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.107(a)X1), a Lessor shall provide the Lessee an EPA-

approved lead hazard information pamphlet before the Lessee is obligated under
any contract to lease target housing. Respondent failed to provide Lessee an EPA-
approved pamphlet in at least two leases.

b. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.107(a)(2), a Lessor shall disclose to the Lessee the
presence of any known lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the target
housing. Respondent failed to disclose to the Lessee the presence of any known lead-
based paint in at least two leases.

c. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.107(a)(3), a Lessor shall disclose to each Agent the
presence of any known lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the target
housing, and the existence of any available records or reports pertaining to lead-based
paint. Respondent failed to disclose to the Agent the presence of any known lead-
based paint, and the existence of any records or reports, in at least one lease.

d. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.107(a}(4), a Lessor shall provide to the Lessee any
records or reports available to the Lessor pertaining to lead-based paint and/or lead-
based paint hazards in the target housing. Respondent failed provide to the Lessee any
records or reports in at least one lease.

e. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(1), each contract to lease target housing shall

include, as an attachment to or within the contract, the Lead Warning Statement.

Respondent failed to include an appropriate statement in at least one lease.
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f. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(2), each contract to lease target housing shall
include, as an attachment to or within the contract, a statement disclosing the
presence of known lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the target
housing being leased, or a statement indicating no knowledge of the presence of
lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards. Respondent failed to include an
appropriate statement in at least one lease.

g. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(3), each contract to lease target housing shall
include, as an attachment to or within the contract, a list of any records or reports
available to the Lessor that pertain to lead hazard information, or an indication that no
such list exists. Respondent failed to include the appropriate information in at least
one lease.

h. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(4), each contract to lease target housing shall
include in the contract for lease, a statement by the Lessee affirming receipt of the
information required by 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(2) and (b)(3), and the lead hazard
pamphlet required under 15 U.S.C. § 2696. Respondent failed to include the
appropriate information in at least one lease.

i. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(5), each contract to lease target housing shall
include, as an attachment to or within the contract, a staterment by the one or more

Agents involved in the transaction to lease target housing that the Agent(s) has
informed the Lessor of the Lessor’'s obligations, and that the Agent(s) is aware of his

duty to ensure compliance. Respondent failed to include the appropriate information

in at least one lease.
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10.

I1.

12.

13.

j. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(6), each contract to lease target housing shall
include in the contract for lease signatures of the Lessor, Agent, and Lessee certifying
to the accuracy of their statements, as well as the dates of signature . Respondent
failed to include the appropriate information in at least one lease.

IV. Consent Agreement

For the purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations set forth

Above, and neither admits nor denies the factual allegations.

Respondent waives its right to a hearing on the allegations contained herein, and its right

to appeal the proposed final order accompanying the consent agreement.

Respondent consents to the assessment of the penalty proposed by EPA, and agrees to

pay the civil penalty as set forth in this CAFO.

Respondent certifies that as of the date of its execution of this CAFO, it is in compliance

with all relevant requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart F.

This CAFO constitutes a settlement by EPA of all claims for civil penalties pursuant to

Section 16(a) of TSCA, for the specific violations alleged herein. Except as specifically

provided in this CAFO, EPA reserves all other civil and criminal enforcement authorities,

including the authority to address imminent hazards. Compliance with this CAFO shall
not be a defense to any other actions subsequently commenced pursuant to Federal laws
and regulations administered by EPA, and it is Respondent’s responsibility to comply
with said laws and regulations.

Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this CAFO.

The parties agree that the settlement of this matter is in the public interest, and that this

CAFO is consistent with the applicable requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart F.
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V. Terms of Settiement

14. Pursuant to 15 UU.S.C. § 2615(a), TSCA Section 16(a), the nature of the alleged violation,
Respondent’s agreement to perform a Supplemental Environmental Project (SEP) and
other relevant factors, EPA has determined that an appropriate civil penalty to settle this
action is in the amount of One Thousand One Hundred Thirty One Dollars and
Twenty Cents ($1,131.20).

15.  Respondent consents to the issuance of this CAFO, and consents for purposes of
settlement to the payment of the civil penalty as cited in the foregoing paragraph, and to
the performance of the SEP set forth herein.

16.  Respondent shall complete the following SEP, which the parties agree is intended to
sectre significant environmental or public health protection.

a. Perform stabilization and abatement of lead-based paint and lead dust identified within
the North Napier Apartments complex.

b. The SEP is more specifically described in the scope of work attached hereto as
Exhibit A, and incorporated herein by reference.

17.  The total expenditure for the SEP shall not be less than Eleven Thousand Dollars
($11,000). Respondent shall include documentation of the expenditures made in
connection with the SEP as part of the SEP Completion Report set forth herein.

18.  a. Respondent shall submit a SEP Completion report to EPA within forty five (45) days

after issuance of a clearance letter by the abatement contractor indicating completion

of the SEP. The SEP Completion Report shall contain the following information:
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(1). A detailed description of the SEP as implemented;

(il). An affidavit from an authorized company official, attesting that the SEP has
been completed, or explaining in detail any failure to complete;

(iii). Copies of appropriate documentation, including invoices, purchase orders, or
other documentation that specifically identifies and itemizes the individnal costs
of the goods and/or services for which payment is being made. Canceled drafts
do not constitute acceptable documentation, unless such drafts specifically
identify and itemize the individual costs of the goods and/or services for which
payment is being made.

b. Respondent shall submit all reports required by this CAFO by first class mail or
overnight delivery service to the following:
Kevin Woodruff
Lead and Children's Health
Management Section
U.S. EPA Region 4
61 Forsyth Street, S.W.
Atlanta, GA 30303.

19.  Respondent agrees that failure to submit the SEP Completion Report required as set
forth herein above shall be deemed a violation of this CAFQ, and Respondent shall
become liable for stipulated penalties pursuant to paragraph 21 below.

20. Respondent’s agrees that EPA may inspect the facility at any time in order to

confirm that the SEP is being undertaken in conformity with the representations
made herein.

21.  If Respondent fails to comply with any of the terms or provisions of this

CAFO relating to the performance of the SEP and/or to the extent that the actual

expenditures for the SEP do not equal or exceed the cost of the SEP described in
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paragraph 17 above, Respondent shall be liable for stipulated penalties according to the
provisions set forth below:

a. Except as provided in subparagraph (b) immediately below, if the SEP is not
completed satisfactorily, Respondent shall pay a stipulated penalty to the United
States in the amount of Sixteen Thousand One Hundred Sixty Dollars ($16,160).

b. If the SEP is not completed satisfactorily, but the EPA determines that the
Respondent has made good faith and timely efforts to complete the SEP, and has
certified with supporting documentation that at least 90 percent of the minimum
amount of money which was required to be spent was expended on the SEP,
Respondent shall not be liable for any stipulated penalty.

c. If the SEP is satisfactorily completed, and Respondent spent at least 90
percent of the minimum amount of money required to be spent for the SEP,
Respondent shall not be liable for any stipulated penalty.

d. If the SEP is satisfactorily completed, but the Respondent spent less than 90 percent
of the minimum amount of money required to be spent for the SEP, Respondent shall
pay a stipulated penalty of One Thousand Six Hundred Sixteen Dollars ($1,616).

e. For failure to timely submit a SEP Completion Report required by paragraph 18(a)
above, Respondent shall pay a stipulated penalty in the amount of One Hundred
Dollars ($100) for each day the report is late.

f. The determination of whether the SEP has been satisfactorily completed, and
whether the Respondent has made a good faith and timely effort to implement and

complete the SEP shall be at the sole discretion of EPA.
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g. Payment of stipulated penalties shall be due not more than fifteen (15) days after
receipt of written demand by EPA for such penalties. The method of payment shall
be in accordance with the provisions of paragraphs 26 and 27 below.

22.  Respondent certifies that, as of the date this CAFO is signed, Respondent is not required
to perform any part of the SEP by any federal, state or local law, regulation, permit or
order, or by any agreement or grant. Respondent further certifies that it has not received,
and is not negotiating to receive, credit for any part of the SEP in any other enforcement
action of any kind.

23.  For federal income tax purposes, Respondent agrees that it will neither capitalize into
inventory or basis nor deduct any costs or expenditures incurred in performing the SEP.

24.  Any public statement, oral or written, made by Respondent making reference to the SEP
shall include the following language: “This project was undertaken in connection with the
settlement of an enforcement action taken by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
for violations of Section 409 of the Toxic Substance Control Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2685.”

Y1. Final Order

25.  Respondent is assessed a civil penalty of ONE THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED
THIRTY ONE DOLLARS and TWENTY CENTS ($1,131.20) which shall be paid
within 30 days from the effective date of this CAFO.

26.  Respondent shall remit the civil penalty by either a cashier's or certified check made
payable to the "Treasurer, United States of America,” and shail send the check to the

following address by U.S. Postal Service:
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U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

PO Box 979077

St. Louis, MO 63197-9000.

The check shall reference on its face the name of the
Respondent and Docket Number of this CAFO.

27. At the time of payment, Respondent shall send a separate copy of the check and a written

statemnent that the payment has been made in accordance with this CAFO, to each of the

following persons at the following addresses:

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. EPA Region 4

61 Forsyth Street, S.W.
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960;

Kevin L. Woodruff

Lead and Children’s Health
Management Section

U.S. EPA Region 4

61 Forsyth Street

Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960;

and,

Saundi Wilson

Office of Environmental Accountability
U.S. EPA - Region 4

61 Forsyth Street

Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960.

28. For the purposes of state and federal income taxation, Respondent shall not be entitled,

and agrees not to attempt, to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made

pursuant to this CAFO. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shall

constitute a violation of this CAFO.

29. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on debts

owed to the United States and a charge to cover the cost of processing and handling a
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delinquent claim. Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the date
of entry of this CAFO, if the penalty is not paid by the date required. A charge will also
be assessed to cover the administrative costs, both direct and indirect, of overdue debts.
In addition, a late payment penalty charge shall be applied on any principal amount not
paid within 90 days of the due date.

30.  Complainant and Respondent shall bear their own costs and attorney fees in this matter.

31.  This CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, its successors and assigns.

32.  The undersigned representative of the party to this CAFO certifies that he or she is fully
authorized by the party represented to enter into this CAFO and legally binds that party to

this CAFO.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank]
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VII. Effective Date
33.  The effective date of this CAFO shall be the date on which the CAFO is filed with the
Regional Hearing Clerk.
AGREED AND CONSENTED TO:.
Respondent: MULLIS and GRIFFIN PROPERTIES, d/b/a NORTH NAPIER

Docket No.:

-
(Signature)  Date: élﬁ OZ/ % ?

By:

7
Name: _ Poipee & Jéf/&«/ (Typed or Printed)
Title: Cev~ee (Typed or Printed)
Complainant: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

By: | 44"’ Date: 7b”/ 59

Carol L. Kemker

Acting Director

Air, Pesticides and Toxics
Management Division

61 Forsyth Street

Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960

-]
APPROVED AND SO ORDERED this_22% day of uﬁlﬁm bre. , 2009.

SRS AR

Susan B. Schub
Regional Judicial Officer
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Exhibit A



Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assessment Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374

Additional Lead-Based Paint Testing 24,34(b)
And Cost Estimate
(Addendum to the report dated June 12, 2008)

- GEC Job No: MCE-09-3837A
Additional Survey Completion Date: April 9, 2009

4017 North Napier Avenue
Macon, Georgia, 31208
Year Built: 1968

Property Owner:
Mullis & Griffin Properties
P.O. Box 6292

Macon, Georgie 31208

Prepared For: Prepared By:

Mullis & Griffin Properties, Geotechnical & Environmental
North Napier Apartments Consultants, Inc.

P.O. Box 6292 514 Hillerest Industrial Boulevard
Macon, GA 31208 Macon, GA 31204

(478) 7420620 (478) 757-1606

LEAD INSPECTOR: Todd K. Peterman
GA LEAD RISK ASSESSOR # 70R-0307-7897
Expiration: August 30, 2009

GEC




Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assessment Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374
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Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Vistal Assessment Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374

April 21,2009

Mr, Mike Griffin

Mullis & Griffin Properties
P.O. Box 6292

Macon, Georgia 31208

Subject: Lead-Based Paint Inspection (Addendum) Report for additional sempling at the
Muiti-Family Property Located at:
North Napier Apartments
4017 Napier Avenue
Macon, GA 31208

Dear Mr., Griffin:

Please find enclosed the lead inspection report for the additional sampling performed at the Multi-family
apartment community located at 4017 North Napier Avenue, Macon, Georgia 31208. The XRF survey
was performed within current acceptable industry guidelines — Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Guidelines Chapter 7 (Revised 1997) and Georgia Regulations.

The additional sampling was performed to determine the exact location of the components that
tested positive in the previous inspection.” The window accents were determined by the
representative sampling to be positive for lead-based paint in the previous survey, therefore a 100
pereent audit of all window accents were performed during this inspection. This will delineate the
extent of the contaminated components, which will lower the abatement cost.

Geotechnical & Environmental Consultants, Inc. conducted a lead paint inspection at the above-
referenced site. The property is a Multi-family apartment community,

Geotechnical & Environmental Consultants, Inc, used a Niton XLP-303A X-ray fluorescence (XRF)
lead paint analyzer to sample paint for lead. XRF Instrument serial # 15288 was used on this job.

Licensed Georgia Lead Inspector Todd K. Peterman (License No. GA 60-INSO-0808-7897, Expiration
Date August 30, 2009) tested this site on April 7" and. 8%, 2009,

Geotechnical & Environmental Consultants, Inc. has determincd that there is lead-based paint in
or on the structure, and lead hazard reduction activities will be required.

If you have any questions and/or comments, please contact us directly at (478) 757-1606,

Sincerely, Zﬁ;f %%l

TODD K. PETERMAN
GA Lead-Based Paint Inspector # 60-INSO-0808-7897
GA Risk Assessor, Lead Hazards # 70-RA0-0808-7897

Enclosure | ( : l :C “



Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assessment Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374

II. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Geotechnical & Environmental Consultants, Inc. has been authorized to perform additional lead-based
paint test at the property located at 4017 North Napier Avenue, Macon, Georgia 31208. The property
is owned by Mullis & Griffin Properties, P.O. Box 6292, Macon, Georgia 31208. Geotechnical &
Environmental Consultants, Inc. tested all accessible window accents on the buildings exterior to
determine the exact location of all LBP covered components. The previous survey issued on June 26,
2008 indicated only one window accent that was positive for LBP, therefore a | 00 percent inspection of
all window accents was performed, and if the window accent was inaccessible it will be assumed to
contain LBP and will have to be abated. The drawings in section V of this addendum report will show
the locations and number of accents that will have to be abated.

The survey of the painted components was performed using a Niton XLP-303A X-ray Fluorescence
(XRF) meter. The data collected is in the section titled “XRF Results.
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Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assessment Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374

11, SCOPE OF INSPECTION

A. Building Background

The property located at 4017 North Napier Avenue, Macon, Georgia 31208 is a multi-family
apartment complex known as The North Napier Apartments. This property was built in 1968 and has
recently been audited by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

B. Preface

Geotechnical & Environmental Consultants, Inc. has been contracted to perform lead-based paint testing
of the above-referenced multi-family apartment community to determine the possible presence,
condition, location and amount of lead paint. The testing was conducted on April 7™ and 8™, 2009.

C, Training

The inspector utilized by Geotechnical & Environmental Consultants, Inc. has EPA/State licensure and
is a licensed Lead Risk Assessor. All technicians utilized by Geotechnical & Environmental
Consultants, Inc. have also been trained in the use, calibration and maintenance of the X-ray
Fluorescence (XRF) equipment they currently use, along with necessary principles of Radiation Safety.,

D. Equipment

XRF Instrument serial # 15288 was used on this job. The instrument was last serviced on January,
2009. See Appendix VIII for XRF Performance Characteristic Sheets (PCS).

E. Inspection Company

The inspection was performed by an Inspector/Risk Assessor employed by Geotechnical &
Environmental Consultants, Inc.,, 514 Hillcrest Industrial Boulevard, Macon, GA 31204 (License
number GA 10-0799-161-30, Expiration Date February 18, 2010). The company’s telephone number is
(478) 757-1606.

F. Methods

The calibration of the Niton XLP-303A is done in accordance with the Performance Characteristic Sheet
(PCS) for this instrumuent. These XRF instruments are calibrated using the calibration standard block of
known 1.0mg/cm® lead content. Three calibration readings are taken at the beginning of the work day
and at the end of each work day or within four hours after the testing starts to insure manufacturer’s
standards are met. If for any reason the instrument is not maintaining a consistent calibration reading
within the meanufacturer’s standards for performance on the calibration block supplied by the
manufacturer, manufacturer’s recommendations are used to bring the instrument into calibration. If the
instrument cannot be brought back into calibration it is taken off the site and sent back to the

manufacturer for repair and/or re-calibration,



Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assessment Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374

G. Findings

This property is a multi-family apartment community. The Chapter 7 Multi-Family Testing Rules were
followed.

Geotechnical & Environmental Consultants, Inc. determined that only the exterior window accent
components contain lead in amounts greater than or equal to 1.0mg/em’ in paint.

H. Concluslons

The components listed in Section IV were determined to be positive for lead paint, as defined by
Environmental Protection Agency/Department of Housing and Urban Development (EPA/HUD) and the
Georgia Department of Natural Resources Environmental Protection Division (EPD) as containing lead

in concentrations greater than or equal to 1.0mg/crm’,

When evaluating this report, it is assumed (Chapter 7, HUD Guidelines), that if one testing
combination (ex: living room/window sill/wood) in an interior or exterior room equivalent is found
to be positive for lead-based paint, then all other similar testing combinations in that room
equivalent are also assumed to be positive for lead-based paint. The exception to this assumption
is when 100% of the similar testing combinations in the room equivalent are tested. In addition,
all testing combinations not tested are assumed to be positive for lead-based paint.

This inspection is done in accordance with Lead Safe Housing Rule 24 CFR Part 25, subpart F as
amended June 21, 2004. The sample results are presented in Section VI. The surface conditions were
all intact at the time of inspection. In compliance with *HUD"s Final Rule,” potential hazards will need
to be reduced by stabilizing all deteriorated lead-based paint in housing built before 1978, unless the
property is exempt. Upon completion of paint stabilization activities, HUD requires a clearance
examination to determine that paint stabilization efforts were performed adequately. Paint stabilization
means to repair any defect in the substrate or any defect in a building component that is causing the
paint deterioration and to remove all loose paint and other loose material from the surface to be treated
utilizing lead-safe work practices, and to apply a new protective coating or paint.

In general: o]
Testing combinations found to be in “intact” condition require no action. They should, however, be
inspected visually by a LBP professional on at least an annual basis for evidence of deterioration.
Testing combinations found to be in “fair” or “poor™ condition should at a minimum undergo paint
film stabilization using lead-safe work practices. If these testing combinations are part of friction
or impact surfaces {e.g., window assemblies and door assemblies), they should be removed and
replaced rather than stabilized. This typically increases the cost per component or assembly by at

least 50%.
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Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assessment Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374

The Final Rule specifies who cen perform paint stabilization of deteriorated surfaces. The repair
contractor must either be supervised by a cerified lead paint abatement supervisor, or successfully
complete one of several courses approved by HUD. A list of contractors who are under the supervision
of a certified lead paint abatement supervisor can be provided by the State or EPA Lead Control Office.
Contractors who are also able to perform the work must be able to document that they have successfully

completed a qualifying course,
Examples of such courses follow:

1. An accredited lead abatement supervisor course;

2. An accredited lead-based paint worker course;

3 “The Lead-Based Paint Maintenance Training Program” developed by the National
Environmental Training Association for EPA and HUD;

4, “The Remodeler’s and Renovator’s Lead-Based Paint Training Program™ prepared by HUD and
the National Association of the Remodeling Industry (NARI); and

5. Any course approved by HUD after consultation with EPA for this purpose.

The management company will deterinine, with EPA, whether lead hazard reduction will need to be
performed at the property.

A Clearance Examination will include a visual evaluation of all surfaces that were determined to be
defective during the initial inspection, and collection of dust samples, It should be determined that the
deteriorated paint surfaces have been eliminated and that no settled dust lead hazards exist in the
dwelling or unit. The clearance report must be signed by a Certified/Licensed Lead Inspector/Risk

Assessor.

Clearance testing will be performed on the structures that were determined to have deteriorated lead-
based paint above the de minimis levels (2 square feet or 10% of a component with a small surface area,
such as interior window sills, baseboards and trim or 20 square feet on exterior surfaces).

Some painted surfaces may contain levels of lead below 1.0 mg/¢m?; these components could create lead
dust or lead contaminated soil hazards if thc paint is turned into dust by abrasion, scraping or sanding, If
conditions of intact paint surfaces become destabilized, these conditions will need to be addressed in the
future. If any construction or modernization work is done on the premises, this report should be given to
the contractors as well as the tenants.

If the lead evaluation results indicate the presence of lead-based paint, the prospective owner may wish
to obtain, at the prospective owner's expense, additional services of a lead-based paint inspector or risk
assessor, certified for the State in which the property is located, to help understand the positive results.
This person would review this report and may re-evaluate any areas in question and/or additional areas.
Interpretations and possible actions may vary when only a few readings indicate the presence of lead-

based paint.
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Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assessment Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374

L. Paint Stabilization Recommendations and Cost Estimate

A visual risk assessment was conducted to determine the presence of lead-based paint hazards based on
condition and location of lead-based paint, *Hazardous lead-based paint™ means lead-based paint that is
present on a friction surfece where there is evidence of abrasion, lead-based paint that is present on an
impact surface that is damaged or otherwise deteriorated from impact, lead-paint that is present on a
chewable surface, or any other deteriorated lead-bascd paint in any residential building or on the exterior
of any residential building,

A) Deteriorated Y.ead-Based Paint — Stabilization Actions Required

s  Twenty-four of the window accents tested positive or were assumed to be positive for LBP and
will have to be abated.

B) Estimated cost of abatement of lcad based paint components are from $10,000.00 to
$12,000.00 for the abatement of the lead paint coated components.

This cost is estimated on the number of units that will have to be abated and area industry
standards,

C) Hazard Control Method Standard Reevaiuation Schedule and Type of Reevaluation
Abatement of lead-based-paint-covered components.
Reevalunte after abatement with final clearance testing.
All recommendations, findings, and conclusions stated in this report are based upon facts and
circumstances, as they existed at the time of the inspection and at the time that this report was prepared.

Quantities are approximate. Contractor shall field verify amount/size of lead-based paint
components/surfaces.

IV: Positive XRF Results
Interior;

The interior was not tested during this period.

Exterior:
Geotechnical & Environmental Consultants, Inc. determined that 24 of the window accents under
each window component contain lead in amounts greater than or equal to 1.0mg/cm’ in paint,
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V. Floor Plans/Photo Log

PHOTOGRAPH SHEET

| REMARKS |

GEC



Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assessment Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374

SIDE A

WINDOW
ACCENT
POSITIVE FOR
LBP.

PHOTOGRAPH SHEET

|  REMARKS |




Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assessment Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374

GENERAL
PHOTOGRAFH
OF
COMMUNITY

SIDE B




Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assesswient Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374

Ho areas leaid postiy & for LEP.

o — -y £ gy

Bulding 41 Lower Level

Bulding 41 Uper Level

Rad sreaq Indica s pos v e for LRP or no atthse. T wil havse © ba asn ured poxliv a for LBP.

-ﬂ-r—r-‘J-e-EH-m-E-

Building 85 Lower Level

Building 85 Unper Level



Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assessment Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-3837A

Ko aresd poalive for LBP Intheaw bulldings.

11 10 : 8

Buiding 119 Lower Lavel

1 10 9

SNSSN I — T— S~ H | W —,
Buiding 11-6 Uper Level

Ko wmes of LBP R g balkinge

mﬂ-m—mj

Lower Leat Rildng 1312

13 12

L-----==-¢=--*---------------

Unpor Lovel BUfiding 1342



Lead-Based Paint Iuspection and Visual Assessmeni Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374

Nou ress po iy e for LBP [n thes » WK ngs.

Raxj \ndicaies pod [Ova e LEP,

16 15 14
Buliding 6-14 Lower Level
16 15 14
L-E——- e -
Bulding 18-14 Upper Lewel

L—-I—I—ma-|

Bulldngs 18-17 Lovar

e -t em——

e

17

Bufldrgs 18-17 Upper

e



Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assessment Repart
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374

Fodindsrias peshive for LBP.

Butings 12-20 Lover

Buitiings 13-20 Upper

RED aras positi ve for LOM la twas bulicia g,

23 22 21

Building 2321 Lower Level

2 2 21

Bilding 2321 Upper Level



Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assessment Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-3837A4

Rad arens indicals positly e for LE® ar fi sccinr Thiae wil hiv 5 t0 be ssowned pasitiv g Xy LBP,

25 24
= N T - e e,
- B —— e
Buliding 24-28 Lower
25 p ]

Eeilcing 24-28 Upper



Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assessment Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374

VI. XRF Results

GEC



Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assessment Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374

VI. XRF Result Day 1

1 36

2 CALIBRATE Positive 1.1

3 CALIBRATE Positive 1.1

4 CALIBRATE Positive 1.1
5|YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD __ |PEELING |Negative 0
8|YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD _ |PEELING [Negative 0.9
7|YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD _ |PEELING |Negative 0
8|YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD _ |PEELING |Negative 0
o|lYELLOW [LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD _ |PEELING |Negative 0.7
10[YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD  |PEELING |Positive 13
11]YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD  |PEELING |Positive 1.1
12[YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD __ |PEELING |Positiva 1.4
13[GREEN [LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD  |PEELING [Negative 0
14|GREEN__[LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD__ [PEELING [Negative 0
15|GREEN |LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD _ |PEELING |[Nagative 0
16|GREEN [LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD _ |PEELING |Negative 0
17|GREEN _|LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD  |PEELING [Negative 0
18|GREEN__[LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD _ |PEELING |Negative 0
19|GREEN _|LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD  |PEELING |Negativa 0
20(GREEN _[LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD __|[PEELING [Nuil 0
21|GREEN _|LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD  |PEELING |Negative 0|
22lGREEN _[LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD __ [PEELING |Negative 0
23|GREEN _|LOWER BLDG 23-21 WOOD  [PEELING [Negative 0
24|GREEN _[UPPER BLDG 23-21 WOOD  |PEELING [Negative 0
25|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 23-21 WOOD __ [PEELING |Positive 1.9

B 26|YELLOW [UPPER BLDG 23-21 WOOD __|PEELING [Negative 0.7
27lIGREEN  [UPPER BLDG 23-21 WOOD __ [PEELING [Negative 0
28/GREEN _[UPPER BLDG 23-21 WOOD __ |PEELING |Negative 0
29|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 23-21 WOOD _ [PEELING |Posltive 1.4
30]YELLOW {UPPER BLDG 23-21 WOOD  |PEELING |Positive 1
31]GREEN |UPPER BLDG 23-21 WOOD _ [PEELING [Negative 0

fv 32|GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 23-21 WOOD _ [PEELING [Negative 0
33]YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 23-21 WOOD _ |PEELING [Null 1.1

| 34|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 23-21 WOOD _ |PEELING |Negative 0.8
[ 35|YELLOW |UPPER ALDG 23-21 WOOD __[PEELING [Positive 14
36|GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 23-21 WOOD _ |PEELING |Negative 0
37|GREEN |UPPER BLDG 23-21 WOOD _ |PEELING [Negative 0

F 38| YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 23-21 WOOD __ |PEELING |Negative 0.8
39|GREEN _ |UPPER BLDG 23-21 WOOD __ |PEELING [Negative 0.03
40[YELLOW [UPPER BLDG 23-21 WOOD __ [PEELING [Negative 0.8
41|YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 24-26 WOOD __ |PEELING [Negative 0.01
42|YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 24-26 WOOD ___[PEELING |Negative 0.02
43lYELLOW [LOWER BLDG 24-26 WooD _ [FAIR Negative 0.01

44| YELLOW JLOWER BLDG 24-26 WOoOD _ [FAIR Negative 0.03

45| YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 24-26 wooD  [FAIR Negative 0.15
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46| YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 24-26 WOGD FAIR Negative 0.04
47|YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 24-28 WOoQeD FAIR Negative 0.01
48|YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 24-26 WwO0oD FAIR Negatlve 0
48YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 24-28 WOQD FAIR Negative 0.04
S0|YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 24-28 WOoQoD FAIR Negative 0.02
51|YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 24-28 WOOoD FAIR Nuli 0.5
52|YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 24-26 WOOD FAIR Negative 0.1
53|YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 24-26 WOoOoD FAIR Null 0.4
54|YELLOW |LOWER BLOG 24-26 WOoOoD FAIR Negative -0.09
55/GREEN |LOWER BLDG 24-26 WOQOD FAIR Negalive 0
56/ GREEN [LOWER BLDG 24-26 WOOD FAIR Negative 0
57|GREEN |LOWER BLDG 24-26 WGoOD FAIR Negative 0
58|GREEN |LOWER BLDG 24-26 WOOD FAIR Negalive g
59|GREEN |LOWER BLDG 24-26 WooD FAIR Negative 0
B0JGREEN [LOWER BLDG 24-26 WO0D FAIR Negative 0
81|/GREEN _[LOWER BLDG 24-26 WOQ0D FAIR Negative 0
62|{GREEN [LOWER BLDG 24-28 WOoOoD FAIR Negative 0.01
B83|CGREEN |LOWER BLDG 24-26 WOOoD FAIR Negative 0
64/GREEN |LOWER BLDG 24-26 WOOoD FAIR Negative 0
65/GREEN [LOWER BLDG 24-26 WOOD FAIR Negative 0
66/GREEN [LOWER BLDG 24-28 WOOD FAIR Negative 0
67|GREEN |UPPER BLDG 24-28 WOOD FAIR Negative 0
68|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 24-28 WOoQD FAIR Null 0.8
69 YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 24-26 WOOD FAIR Nulj 1
7O|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 24-28 WOOD FAIR Nul 1.2
71|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 24-28 WOOoD FAIR Null 0.9
72|YELLOW |[UPPER BLDG 24-26 wQoobD FAIR Negative 0.4
73]YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 24-26 WOQD FAIR Negalive 0.4
74|GREEN |UPPER BLDG 24-26 WOOD FAIR Negalive 0
75|GREEN |UPPER BLDG 24-26 WOOD FAIR Negative 0
76|YELLOW [UPPER BLDG 24-26 WOOoD FAIR Nuil 017
77|)YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 24-26 WOooD FAIR Negative -0.01
78|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 24-26 WOQ0D FAIR  |Negative 0.12
79/GREEN |UPPER BLDG 24-26 WOQD FAIR Negalive 0
B0|GREEN |UPPER BLDG 24-26 WOQD FAIR Negative 0
81|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 24-26 WOOoD FAIR Negative 0.4
82[YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 24-28 wooD FAIR Positive 1.9
83|GREEN |UPPER BLDG 24-28 WOOD FAIR Negative 0
84|GREEN |UPPER BLDG 24-26 WOoQoD FAIR Negative 0
85|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 24-26 WOOD FAIR Null 1.1
8B[YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 24-28 WOooD FAIR Negative 0.27
87[YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 24-26 WOOD FAIR Positive 1.1
88|GREEN [UPPER BLDG 24-26 WOOoD FAIR Negative 0
89|GREEN [UPPER BLDG 24-26 WOOD FAIR Negative 0
90|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 24-26 WOOoD FAIR Negative 0.4
M |YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 19-20 WOOD FAIR Negalive 0
92|YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 19-20 WOQoD FAIR Negative 0.01
93[YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 18-20 WOQoD FAIR Negative 0
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94|YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 19-20 WOOD __|FAIR Negative 0.02
95|GREEN _|LOWER BLDG 19-20 WOooD _ |FAR Negative 0.02
96|GREEN _|LOWER BLDG 19-20 WOOD _ |[FAIR Negative )
97|GREEN |LOWER BLDG 19-20 WOO0D ___|FAIR Negative 0
98[GREEN |LOWER BLDG 19-20 WwOooD__[FAIR Negative 0.01
99/GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 19-20 WOOD _ |PEELING |Negative|  ° 0.03
100|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 19-20 WOOD __|PEELING |Nuil 1.1
101|YELLOW [UPPER BLDG 19-20 WOOD___ |PEELING ' |Null 1.3
102|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 19-20 WOOD___ |PEELING |Null 0.9
103|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 19-20 WOOD  |PEELING [Negative 06
104|YELLOW [UPPER BLDG 19-20 WOOD___|PEELING _|Positive 1.4
105|GREEN__|UPPER BLDG 19-20 WOOD__|PEELING |Negative 0
108/GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 19-20 WOOD___|PEELING |Negative 0.21
107|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 18-20 WOOD___ |PEELING |Negative 0.8
108|YELLOW [UPPER BLDG 19-20 WOOD _ |PEELING |[Negative 08
109|GREEN _[UPPER BLDG 19-20 WOOD __|PEELING |Negative 0.01
110 YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD _ |PEELING _[Negative 0.01
111]YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD___ |PEELING |Negative 0.8
112|YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __|PEELING _|Negative 0
113|YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD _ [PEELING [Negative 0
114|YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __ |PEELING [Negative 0.3
115[YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __ |PEELING |Negative 0.19
116|YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD__ |PEELING |Null 08|
117]YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD___|PEELING [Negative 0.4
118|YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD _ |PEELING [Null 0.24)
119]YELLOW | OWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD  |PEELING [Negative 0.25
120]YELLOW _|LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD _ |PEELING [Null 0.1
124|YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __ |PEELING |Null 0.3
122|YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 18-14 WOOD __ |PEELING |Negative | 0.3
123]YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __ |PEELING {Negative 0
124]YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD__ [PEELING |Null 0
125|YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __ [PEELING |Null 0
126|YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD _ |PEELING |Negative 0
127|YELLOW |LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD _ |PEELING [Negative 0.01
128|GREEN _[LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD__|INTACT __ |Negative 0.01
129/GREEN _[LOWER BLDG 18-14 WOOD _ [INTACT _ |Negative 0
130|GREEN _[LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD _ [INTACT _ [Negative 0
131|GREEN |LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOO0D __ [INTACT __|Negative 04
132|GREEN _[LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __[INTACT _ |Negative 0
133|GREEN__|LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD___ [INTACT _|Negative 0|
134|GREEN _|LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD  [INTACT _ |Negative 0
135|GREEN __[LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD  [INTACT _ |Negative 0.18
136|GREEN__|LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD  |INTACT _ |Negative 0
137|GREEN _|LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD _ {INTACT _ [Negative 0
138|GREEN _{LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD___[INTACT _[Negative 0.4
139/GREEN _ |LOWER BLDG 16-14 WOOD  [INTAGT _ [Negative 0
140|GREEN _|UPPER BLOG 18-14 WOOD __|iINTACT _ |Negative 0
141)YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD _ (INTACT _ [Negative 05
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142(YELLOW |UPFPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD__ [INTACT _ [Negative 0.8
143|GREEN _[UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD _ |INTACT__ [Negative 0.09
144/GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __[INTACT _ |Negative 0.4
145{YELLOW [UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD  |INTACT  |Negative 0.4
148|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __ [INTACT  [Negative 0.21]
147|GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __ [INTACT __|Negative 0.5
148|GREEN |UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __ |INTACT _ |Negative 0.6
149|YELLOW [UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __ [INTACT _ [Negative 0.4|
150|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD _ [INTACT _ |Negative 0.4
151|GREEN |UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __ |INTACT __ |Negative 0.3
162|GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __ {INTACT __ |Negative 0.3
153|GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD _[INTACT _|Negative 0.26
154lYELLOW [UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD _ INTACT _ |Negative 0.3
155|YELLOW [UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD  [INTACT _ [Negative 0.5
156|GREEN [UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD  [INTACT _ |Negative 0.4
157|GREEN {UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __|INTACT _ |Negative 0
158|YELLOW [UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD  UNTACT  [Negative 0.3
159]YELLOW [UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD___ |INTACT __ [Negative 0.3
160{GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __ |INTACT __|Negative 0
161|GREEN _ [UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD  [INTACT _ [Negative 0.29
| 162|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD__ |INTACT _ [Negative 0.4
il 1683|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD _ |INTACT __ [Negative 0.3
\ 164/GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 16-14 WOOD __[INTACT __ {Negative 0.5
165 CALIBRATE Positive 1
166 CALIBRATE Positive 1.1
167 CALIBRATE Positive 1.
B 168 346
| 169 3.53
170 CALIBRATE Posltive 1
171 CALIBRATE Null 1
172 CALIBRATE Positive 1.1
173 CALIBRATE Posltive 1.1
174|YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 18-17 WOOD __ [PEELING [Negative 0.3
176|YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 18-17 WwoOoD _ [PEELING [Null 0.6
176|YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 18-17 WOOD___ |PEELING |Negative 0.5
177|YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 18-17 WooD  [PEELING [Negative 0.19
178|YELLOW [LOWER BLDG 18-17 WOOD___|PEELING [Negative 0.7
179|GREEN _[LOWER BLDG 18-17 WOOD _ |PEELING |Negative 0.02
180|GREEN |LOWER BLDG 18-17 WQGOoD PEELING Negative 0.6
181|GREEN [LOWER BLDG 18-17 WOOD _ [PEELING [Positive 1.2
182|GREEN _|LOWER BLDG 18-17 WOOD__ |PEELING |Posttive 1.4
183|GREEN__ [UPPER BLDG 18-17 woOD  [PEELING [Positive 1.8
184|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 18-17 WOOD _ [PEELING [Positive 1.4
185|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 18-17 WOOD _ |PEELING INull 0.8
186(YELLOW [UPPER BLDG 18-17 WOOD __ [PEELING |Negative 0.4
187|GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 18-17 WOOD _ |PEELING |Negative 0.7
188/GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 18-17 WOOD _ [PEELING [Negative 0.01
189{YELLOW [UPPER BLDG 18-17 WOOD __ |PEELING |Negative 0.01
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UPPER BLDG 18-17 WOOD __ |PEELING [Negative 0.27
UPPER BLDG 18-17 WOOD __ |PEELING |Negative 0.02
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD  |[PEELING |Negative 0.6
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ |PEELING [Negative 0.21
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __ |PEELING _|Negative 0.4
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __ |PEELING |Negative 0.11
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD  |PEELING |Null 0.3
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD  |PEELING |Negative 0.14]
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD___ |PEELING _|Negative 0.5
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD  |PEELING |Negative 0.4
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ |PEELING |Negative 0.15
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __PEELING |Negative 0.4
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __ |PEELING |Negative 0.3
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD  |PEELING |Nuil 0.09
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD  [PEELING |Negative 0.15
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD  |PEELING |Negative 0.27
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ |INTACT _ |Negative 0
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ |INTACT _ |Negative 0
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD  {INTACT  |Negative 0.01
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD  IINTACT  [Negative 0.02
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _|INTACT __ |Negative 0
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ |INTACT _ |Negative 0
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __ |INTACT _ INegative 0
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD  |INTACT _ |Negative 0)
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __ |INTACT  |Negative 0|
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __ |INTACT _ |Negative 0.8|
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __ |INTACT  [Negative 0
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD  |PEELING |Null 0
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __ |PEELING |Negative 0
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD  |PEELING [Negative 0
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ |PEELING [Negative 0
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WO0D PEELING |Negative 4
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __ |PEELING |Negative il
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD  |PEELING |Negative 0/
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __ [PEELING [Negative 0
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ |PEELING [Negative 0
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ |PEELING [Null 1
LOWER BLDG 4-1 WOQOD  |PEELING [Negative 0.5
UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOCD PEELING |Negative 0.16
UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _|PEELING |Negative 0.3
UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ |PEELING |Negative 0.23
UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ |PEELING [Negative 0.27|
UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ |PEELING |Negaiive 0
UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ [PEELING [Negative 0.5
UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __ |PEELING |Null 0.4
UPPER BLDG 4-1 WwOoQD PEELING |Negative 0.4
UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD  |PEELING [Negative 0.7
UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD  |PEELING [Negative 0.4
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238|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ |PEELING |Negative 0.4
239|YELLOW [UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __ |PEELING [Negative 0.5|
240/GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD___|[PEELING |Negative 0.4
241|GREEN__|UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ |PEELING [Negative 0.4
242|YELLOW {UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ |PEELING |Negative 0.4
243|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __ |PEELING |Nuii 1.5
244|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD  |PEELING |Negative 0.6
245|GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOQOD __ |PEELING [Negative 0
246|GREEN _UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __|PEELING |Negative 0.5
247|YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __ {PEELING [Negative 0.27
248[YELLOW |UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ [PEELING |Negative 0.5
249/GREEN _[UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __ |PEELING |Negative 0
260|GREEN _ |UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD ___[PEELING [Negative 0.7
251|YELLOW _[UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD _ |PEELING [Negative 0.4
252|YELLOW [UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __|PEELING |Negative 0.24
253/GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD ___ |[PEELING [Negative 0.01
254|GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __|PEELING [Negative 0
255/GREY _ |UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __|PEELING |Negative 0
256|GREY _ |UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD__ |PEELING |[Negative 0
257|GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD___ [PEELING [Negative 0.01]
258|GREEN _|UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD___|PEELING [Negative 0.22
269|GREY  [UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD_  |PEELING [Negative 0
260|GREY _ |UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD __ |PEELING _|Negative 0.01
261/GREEN _ |UPPER BLDG 4-1 WOOD ___ |PEELING |Negative 0
262 CALIBRATE Null 1
263 CALIBRATE Negative 0.9
264 CALIBRATE Posltive 1.1
265 CALIBRATE Negative 0.9
266/ 3.51
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VI. XRF Result Day 2

1 3.76

2 CALIBRATE Positive 1.1

3 CALIBRATE Null 1

4 CALIBRATE Positive 1

5 CALIBRATE Positive 1.1

B]YELLOW LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOOD INTACT _ [Negative 0

7|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOOoD INTACT _ |Negative 0

8|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 13-12 woQbD INTACT  |Negative 0.5

9|YELLOW . LOWER BLDG 13-12 WQoO0D INTACT  [Nepative 0.16
10| YELLOW LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOOD INTACT _ [Negative 0.09
11 YELLOW LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOQD INTACT  |Negative 0.28
12|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOQOD INTACT __ [Negative 0.15
13|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 13-12 WwOQD INTACT _ |Negativa 0.07
14 YELLOW LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOO0D INTACT __ |Negative 0.14
15|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOO0D INTACT __ |Negative o
16| YELLOW LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOQD INTACT  |Negative 0
17|GREEN LOWER BLODG 13-12 WOO0D INTACT _ |Negative 0
18|GREEN LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOOD INTACT __ |Negative 0.01
19|GREEN LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOOoD INTACT __[Negalive 0
20|GREEN LOWER BLDG 13-12 WQOD INTACT __ |Negative 0
21)GREEN LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOO0D INTACT __ |Negalive 0
22|GREEN LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOOD INTACT __ |Negative 0
231GREEN LOWER BLDG 13-12 wWOCD INTACT __ |Negalive 0
24|GREEN LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOQoD INTACT _ |Negative 0
25|GREEN LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOQD INTACT __ [Null 0
26{GREEN LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOOoD INTACT __ |Negative 0
27|GREEN LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOOD INTACT __ [Negative 0
28|GREEN LOWER BLDG 13-12 woOoD INTACT _ |Negative 0
29/GREEN LOWER BLDG 13-12 WOOD INTACT _ |Negative 0|
30|GREEN UPPER BLDG 13-12 WOQD INTACT _|Negative 0
31|YELLOW UPPER BLDG 13-12 WooD INTACT  |Negative 0.22
32|YELLOW UPPER BLDG 13-12 WooD INTACT _ [Null 0.27
33|YELLOW UPPER BLDG 13-12 WOoO0D INTACT _ Negative 0.16
J4|GREEN UPPER BLDG 13-12 WOOD INTACT _ |Negative 0.01
36|GREEN UPPER BLOG 13-12 WOQD INTACT _ [Negative e
3G|YELLOW UPPER BLDG 13-12 WOOoD INTACT _ [Negative 0.22
37| YELLOW UPPER BLDG 13-12 waooD INTACT __ |Negative 0.7
38|GREEN UPPER BLDG 13-12 WwOOoD INTACT _ |Negative 0
39|GREEN UPPER BLDG 13-12 WOOQOD INTACT __ |Negative 0
40|YELLOW UPPER BLDG 13-12 WOOD INTACT __ |Negative 0.12
41YELLOW UPPER BLDG 13-12 WOOD INTACT _[Null 0.3
42| YELLOW UPPER BLDG 13-12 WOQD INTACT _ {Negative 0.27
43|GREEN UPPER BLDG 13-12 WOQoD INTACT __ |Negative 0
44|GREEN UPPER BLDG 13-12 WOOD INTACT __[Negative 0.01
45)YELLOW UPPER BLDG 13-12 WOQoD INTACT _ INegative 0.6
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486 YELLOW UPPER BLDG 13-12 WOO0D INTACT __ [Negative 0.24
47|GREEN UPPER BLDG 13-12 " [wooDb INTACT  |Negative 0.1
48|GREEN UPPER BLDG 13-12 wWOoO0D INTACT  [Negative 0
49|YELLOW UPPER BLDG 13-12 WOOoD INTACT [Negative 0.3
50| YELLOW UPPER BLDG 13-12 WOOD INTACT |Negative 0.2
51|GREEN UPPER BLDG 13-12 WQ0D INTACT __ |Negative 0
52]YELLOW LOWER BLDG 8-56 WOOD INTACT  |Negative 0.5
53|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 8-b WOQD INTACT __ |Negative 0.7
54| YELLOW LOWER BLDG 8-5 WQOD INTACT  |Negative 0.8
55|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 8- WOQOD INTACT |Negative 0.6
56| YELLOW LOWER BLDG 8-5 WOOD INTACT  |Negative 0
57| YELLOW LOWER BLDG 8-5 WOO0D INTACT  |Negative 0
58|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 8-5 WOQoD INTACT __ |Negalive 0.4
59| YELLOW LOWER BLDG 8-5 WOO0D iINTACT  |Negalive 0.7
80|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 8-5 WOOoD INTACT  |Negative 0.5
61|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 8-5 wWOoQD INTACT  |Null 0.9
62|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 8-5 WOOD. INTACT  [Negative 0.8
B83|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 8-5 WOQD INTACT  |Negative 0.8
64|GREEN LOWER BLDG 8-6 WOO0D INTACT  |Negative 0.8
65|GREEN LOWER BLDG 8-56 WOO0D INTACT |Negative 0.4
66|GREEN LOWER BLDG 8-5 wOoOoD INTACT  |Negalive 0.5
87|GREEN LOWER BLDG 8-5 WOOoD INTACT __ |Negative 0.3
688|GREEN LOWER BLDG 8-5 WOOD INTACT __ |Negative 04
69|GREEN LOWER BLDG 8-6 WOOoD INTACT __ |Negative 0.01
70|/GREEN LOWER BLDG 8-5 WOOD INTACT  |Negative 0
71|/GREEN LOWER BLDG 8-5 WwoQoD INTACT |Negative 0.3
72|GREEN LCWER BLDG 8-5 wOooD INTACT  |Negative 0.6
73|{GREEN LOWER BLDG 8-5 WOO0D INTACT  |Negative 0.7
74|GREEN LOWER BLDG 8-56 WOO0D INTACT __ |Negative 08
75|GREEN UPPER BLDG 8-5 WwoOoD INTACT  |Negalive 0.4
76| YELLOW UPPER BLDG 8-5 WOO0D INTACT  |Negative 0.6
77|YELLOW UPPER BLDG 8-6 WOOD INTACT _ [Negative 0.7
78|GREEN UPPER BLDG 8-5 WOOD INTACT  |Negative 0.01
79|GREEN UPPER BLDG 8-b WOOD INTACT _ |Negative 0
80|YELLOW UPPER BLDG 8-5 WOOD INTACT |[Negative 0.6
81,YELLOW UPPER BLDG 8-5 WQOD INTACT [Negative 0.8
82|GREEN UPPER BLDG 8-5 wWOO0D INTACT  |Negativa 0.29
83|GREEN UPPER BLDG 8-5 WQOD INTACT _ |Negative 0.4
84|YELLOW UPPER BLDG 8-5 WQOoD INTACT  |Negative 0.6
85|YELLOW UPPER BLDG 8-5 WOOD INTACT _ [Negative 0.3
86|GREEN UPPER BLDG 8-5 WQ0D INTACT  |Negative 0.6
87(GREEN UPPER BLDG 8-5 WOOD INTACT  |Negalive 0.6
88|YELLOW UPPER 8LDG 8-5 WOoaoD INTACT [Negative 0.6
88[YELLOW UPPER BLDG 8-5 WOOoD INTACT |Negalive 0.5
80/GREEN UPPER BLDG 8-5 WOOoD INTACT  |Negative 0.3
81|GREEN UPPER BLDG §-6 WQOD INTACT  |Negative 0.25
92| YELLOW UPPER BLDG 8-5 WOOD INTACT  |Negalive 0.5
93|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 11-9 WOoO0D FAIR Negative 0.5
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24/ YELLOW LOWER BLDG 11-9 WOQ0D FAIR Negative 0.13
25| YELLOW LOWER 8LDG 11-9 WOODb FAIR Negative 0.19
96| YELLOW LOWER BLDG 11-9 WQOOD FAIR Negative 0.16
97| YELLOW LOWER BLDG 11-9 WOQ0D FAIR Negative 0.23
98[YELLOW LOWER BLDG 11-9 WOQD FAIR Negative 0.21
88|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 11-9 WQQD FAIR Nuli 0.2
100|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 11-9 WQQOD FAIR Negative 0.18
101|YELLOW LOWER 8LDG 11-9 WOOD FAIR Negative 0.5
102|YELLOW LOWER 8LDG 11-9 WQOD FAIR Negative 0.16
103 YELLOW LOWER BLDG 11-9 WOQD FAIR Null 0.5
104 YELLOW LOWER BLDG 11-9 WOQOD FAIR Negalive 0.156
105|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 11-9 wWOoOoD FAIR Negative 0.07
106|YELLOW LOWER BLDG 11-9 WOQoD FAIR Negative 0
107|GREEN LOWER BLDG 11-9 WO0D FAIR Negative 0
108|GREEN LOWER BLDG 11-8 WQOQOD FAIR Negative 0
108|GREEN LOWER BLDG 11-9 WOQQD FAIR Negative 0
110|GREEN LOWER BLDG 11-9 WOGoD FAIR Negaltive 0
111|GREEN LOWER BLDG 11-9 WOQOD FAIR Negative 0.4
112|GREEN LOWER BLDG 11-9 WOOD FAIR Negative 0
113|GREEN LOWER BLDG 11-9 WQO0D FAIR Negative Q
114|GREEN LOWER BLDG 11-9 WOQOD FAIR Negative 0
115/GREEN LOWER BLDG 11-9 WOQOD FAIR Negative 0
116|GREEN LOWER BLDG 11-8 WOOD FAIR Negative Q
117|GREEN LOWER BLDG 11-9 WQOD - FAIR Negative 0
118|GREEN LOWER BLDG 11-9 WOQD FAIR Negative Q.08
119|GREEN UPPER BLDG 11-9 WOOD FAIR Negative 0.26
120[YELLOW UPPER BLDG 11-9 WQOOD FAIR Negative 0.3
121|YELLOQW UPPER BLDG 11-9 WOOoD FAIR Negalive 0.4
122|GREEN UPPER BLDG 11-9 WOOD FAIR Negative 0.26
123|GREEN UPPER BLDG 11-9 WOO0D FAIR Negalive 0.6
124 YELLOW UPPER BLDG 11-9 WOOD FAIR Negative 0.12
125\ YELLOW UPPER BLDG 11-9 WOO0D FAIR Negalive 0.3
126|/GREEN UPPER BLDG 11-9 WOOD FAIR Negative 0]
127|GREEN UPPER BLDG 11-9 WOQD FAIR Negative D4
128|YELLOW UPPER BLDG 11-8 WwWOOD FAIR Negative 0.3
129|YELLOW UPPER BLDG 11-9 WOOD FAIR Negative 0.3
130|GREEN UPPER BLDG 11-9 WOOD FAIR Negative 0.3
131|GREEN UPPER BLDG 11-9 WwQO0D FAIR Negative 0.13
132|YELLOW UPPER BLDG 11-9 WOOD FAIR Negative 0.23
133|YELLOW UPPER BLDG 11-9 WOOD FAIR Negalive 0.4
134|GREEN UPPER BLDG 11-9 wooD FAIR Negative 0.6
135|GREEN UPPER BLDG 11-9 WOOoD FAIR Negative 0.5
136 YELLOW UPPER BLDG 11-9 wOQD FAIR Negative 0.28
137 YELLOW UPPER BLDG 11-9 wWOQD FAIR Negative 0
138|GREEN UPPER BLDG 119 WOQOD FAIR Negative 0.3
139|GREEN UPPER BLDG 11-8 WQOD FAIR Negative 0.3
140|YELLOW UPPER BLDG 11-9 WOQOD FAIR Negative 0.2
141 |YELLOW UPPER BLDG 11-8 WOOD FAIR Negative 0.3
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142|GREEN UPPER BLDG 11-8 WOOoD FAIR Negative 0.4
143 CALIBRATE Positive 1
144 CALIBRATE Positive 1.1
145 CALIBRATE Nuil 1
148 CALIBRATE Nuli 1
147 CALIBRATE Posilive 1
148 3.35
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VII License/Certifications

Georgia Department of Natural Resources

4220 International Parkway, Suite 100, Affanta, Georgla 30354

Nosl Holcomb, Commissioner
Carol A, Couch, Ph.D, Direcior
nviormental Protectian Divislon

404762-2078

RADIOACTIVE MATERIALS PROGRAM
GEORGIA RADIOACTIVE MATERIALS LICENSE

Pirtrusst @ the Ceorgis Radiade Connol Act O.CQA. J1-1D rnn 941) 1990 nnd Ilanrpl of Hahurst B Hales and
Regulations, designated Clmpier 991-3-17, and In rellance oo st ity and h fix mdl ly Ib liemses delgrated beiow, &
license Is kerebry iymaed svthoriziag such Heenges fo branafer, ecdive, passtas, se us¢ W eadlcaeth I{s) & d below; sod bo oye such

radlesctive materinls for the purpode(s) and af tha pluce(s) dcslgnated below. Ths license bs subject ia ol lpplluhl: niles wd uﬂluinnl of the

Gaorgla Depurtioeet of Katurn! Resources and ocdets fisoed by the Departmenl, pow or hecssfter da effect, end Lo any conditlon speci Red bebow.

Page 1 of & Pages
Licenss Numbar GA 1388-1
Amendmen{ Number .07

Cormrecled Copy
License (1. Name and 2. Address) A in accordence with letter datad Mareh 1,
2007, Licanse Numbar QA 1388-11s
Geotechnlkcal 8 Environmental Censullante, Inc. amendad In its entirety o read aa

514 Hllleres! Industdal Boulevard foliows:
Macan, Georgla 31204-3472
4, Explration Date: December 31, 2008

8, Tolephona Number: 478-757-1604
Facslmile Number: 478-767-1608

8. RADIOACTIVE 7. CHEMICAL AND/OR 4. MAXIMUM QUANTITY
MATERIAL (ELEMENT PHYSICAL FORM LICENSEE MAY POSBESS
AND MASS NUMBER) AT ANY ONE TIME

A Ceslum-137 A, Seafed Source {Modal A. 15 sources, no single source

number or Modals which are to excend 11 millicuriea

registered In accordance with
Rule 391-3-17.02(11)1) or

aquivalent regulations of he
US NRC or another
Agresmant Stete)
B. Amerlclum-241;Be B. Sealed Source {Model B. 15 sources, no singla eource
number or Models which ere to exceed 100 miliicures

reglstered In eccordence with
Rule 384-3-17.02(11Xl) ar
equivalent regufalions of tha
US NRC or another
Agreemunt State)

€. Amerlclum 241 C. Sesled Sources (Models GC. Nosingle sourca Lo exceed
which are regleterad In the 30 milllcurles
Beaisd Source & Device
Cataleg or with the Bureau
of Radiologlcal Heallh)
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Georgla Department of Natural Resouvces
Radioactive Materials License

Supplementary Sheet -
Page 20f 6
Licenaa Numbaer QA 1388-1
Amendment Number .07
6. RADICACTIVE 7. CHEMICAL AND/OR 8. MAXIMUM QUANTITY
MATERIAL (ELEMENT PHYSICAL FORM LICENSEE MAY POSSESS
AND MASS NUMBER) AT ANY ONE TIME
D. cadmium-109 D. Sealed Sources (Modele  D. No alngle aourca to exceed
which are reglstared In the 80 millicurisa
Soaled Source & Devica

Catalog or with the Bureau
of Radlologlical Health)

E. tron-33 E, Sealed Sources (Models E. Nosingle acurce to exceed
which are raglatered In tha 40 millicurlea
Sealed Sourée & Device
Cetalog or with the Bursau
of Radlologlcal Health)

9. AUTHORIZED USE

A For ysa In e Troxier Eleclronic Laboratorias, Inc. Model 3400 Sarias, 3411 B, 3430 and CPN
Internallonal, Inc. Model MC-3 gauges b determine molsiure and density contentin
construction malsdals,

B, Foruselna Tru:d-er Electionls Labhoraiariag, Inc. Model 3400 Serles, GEN International, Inc.

Modaels MC-1, MC-3 and AC-2 devices and Humboldt Scisntific, inc. Model 5001-P ta determina
moisture end denslly conlant in construction materials and acphall conlent respactively,

C.,D.endE.

Folr use In Thermo Flsher Sclentific Niton Environmentst Analyzer XIl serlae and XLp
garles,

CONDITIONS

10.  Radloaciive material shall be etored at 614 Hillcrest Industrial Bouleverd, Macon, Qeargla
31204, 2nd at 6202 W. Hamilton Park Drive, Columbua, Gaorgia 31809, Radloactive maleral
may be used only at lemporary Job altas of the licansee anywhare In the Stete of Qeorgla, This
condition does not prohiblt uss In other Agreement Stales and Statas under the Jurisdiction of
tha U.S. Nuclear Regulalory Commisslon under reciprocily procedures that may be established
by an Agreement Stata or the U.3. Nuclear Raguialory Commiesion.




Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assessment Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374

Georgia Department of Natural Resources
Redioactlve Materials License
Supplemenlary Sheet

Pagadof B
Licanse Number OA 13881
Amendment Number .07

Gondltions {(conlnued)

1.

12.

13.

185

The ikcansee shall comply with the provisions of Gaorgla Depariment ol Natural Resources Rule
391-3-17-.00, "Standards for Protsclion Against Radlation. Amended.”, Rule 381-3-17-.08,
*Transportalicn of Radloactiva Materlel. Amandsd.”, and Rule 381-3-17-07, “*Nolices,
Instructions end Reporta to Workers: Inspections. Amended.”

In accordance wilh DNR Board Polley adopted May 28, 2003 tha feas assoclatad with thia
license, foe calagory, C. 11, are:

Application Fee §500.00  Annual Fee $1000.00
Amendment Fee $ 3580.00 Non-routine inspection Fee $1200.00

Checke for the feas ahould be mads payable to the Department of Nature! Resoyrces,
Radloactive Matadals Program, and maflad to the following eddress:
Radloactive Msterlals Fees
P.0. Box 101181
Allanta, GA 30382

Ma]l ticenga appllcations, amandment, and renewal requaets the same day gs the check to the
following address:
Radloacilve Melariale Program
4220 Intemallonal Parkwey, Sulte 100
Atlante, GA 30354

Annual feas sre billed by the Department at the beginning of each flscal yoar,

The Redlation Safaty Officer In this program shall ba Jerry B. Willlams.

Licensad materlal ehall ba used by, or under the suparvislon of Jerry B. Willlams, or by

Individuais who have puccessfully completed the manufaclurer's iralning program, have
rocslved coples of the licensee'a operaling and emergancy proceduras, and have bean
deslignated by tha Radlallon Saflaly OfMicer. RecordaiCerificatas shsll ba maintained for
Departmant inapection.

Each portable gauge shall have e lock or outer locked contalner designed ‘o prevent
unauthorized or eccldental removel of the sesled source from ila shielded position. The gauge
or lis contalner must be locked when In transport, slorage, or when not under the direct
survetianca of en aeuthorized use
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Georgia Department of Natural Resonrces

Radioactive Materials License
Supplementary Shest
Page 4 of 5 Pages
Licenss Number GA
Amendment Numbsr

Conditions {continuad)

16.

17.

18,

18

20.

21,

Excepl for maintaining labelng as required by 391-3-17.-03, the licenses shall cblain
suthorization irom the Department bsfore meking any changes in the seaiad source, devics, or
gource-device combination that would aller the description or spacifications ag Indicated in the
Sealed Sourca Reglstry Issued alther by the Dsparimant, en Agreemant Slate of the Nuciesr
Reguiatory Commigsion. .

Malntanance or repalr of porieble devices invohing removsl of saaled sources from the devices
or removal or dismanliing of ahleiting may be petformad only by tha device manufacturer, ar by
parsons apacilically aulhorized by the Departmenl, Agrcemant States, or the U.S. Nucleer
Ragulatory Commisakon to perform such services,

Saeled gources conlaining radloaciive materiat shall aot ba openad or temoved from thelr
raspaclive source hoidars by the Hicensae.

Tha llcensae shell conduct a physical inventory svery 6 months to eccount for ail lcansad
material recelved and pagsessad under this license, The records of Inventorles shall be
malntained for Inapeclion by the Depariment and shall Include the quantitles and kinds of
radioaclive malaral, ihe menufacturer, mods! and sardal numbar, jocation of saaled sources,
and the dale and name of the Individusl parfoming tha Invenlory.

The licanses shall porform required tasty for jeakage or contamination at inlervala not lo excesd
alx (8) months In accordares with Rule 301-3-17-.03(8). Analysis of the tests shall be
performed by Troxisr, Regla Enginesring or CEN or by other parsons spechically authorized by
tha Department, the U.S. Nuclear Rsgulatory Commisslon, or an Agreament Stale to perform

such ssrvices.

Tha licanses shall matnialn a currant utilization log which aheli ba kept avaiabla for inspeciion
by the Dapartment, for three years from tha dete of the recorded evant, showing for each sesled
source the following Information:

A A unique ldenlification, such as a serfal number, for each portable gauge la which e
sealad saurce ie localed;

B. Thae ldentity of tha Individusl to whom asalgnad;
Locations whare usad and dales of usa; and

Thae date{a) each source Is removed from slorega and retumad 1o storage
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Georgia Department of Natural Resources
Radioactive Materials License
Supplementaty Sheet

Page 5 of 5 Pages
Licanss Number GA
Amandmerd Number

Conditians {continuad)

22,  The licensaa shall nolfy the Radlcaclive Maleriala Program, Georgla Depastment of Natural
Resources, of each operallon conducted under the license at a locatlon othar than that epecified
In e 2 above vhien such operation continues for more than B0 days. Tha llcanasa shall also
nolfy this office upon cessetion of such oparation. :

23.  The llcensea sha!l not vacate or relaasa to unmstricled use e fleld office or storage location
whose address Is Identflad in cardition 10, vithout prior Depariment approval.

24, Except as apacifically provided otherwfes in this ticensa, the licansee shall conduct Hs progrem
In accordance with statements, repreaentations, and procedurea conlalned in the decuments,
Including any enciasuras llated below:

. Appllcation with enclosures dated March 4, 2005, and skgned by Jemry B, Willame, RSC.

. Latter with enclcaures datad August 10, 2005, and elgned by Jerry B. Williams, RSO,

. Latter with anclosures dated August 18, 2000, and algnad by Jarry B, Willams, RSO.

. Lalter wilh enclosures deted Augusl 16, 2006 and ravised January 8, 2007, signed by Jorry
B. Willlams, RS0,

Lettar and altachmenls dated March 1, 2007 and signed by Jerry 8, Willams, RSO ahd
Cavid F. Prince, Environmental Speclafist

m pomy»

Tha Georgla Departmant of Nalural Resourcas' regulations shall govern unlass the stelaments,
ropresenlalions and procedures In the iicenses's application and comespondence are mors restriclive
than the Regulsliona,

FOR THE DEFARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

Date: _ March 16..2007 BY Coad—
Cynthla Sanders
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Lead-Based Paint Inspection and Visual Assessment Report
GEC Job # MCE-09-38374

VIII Performance Characteristic (PCS) Sheets
EFFECTIVE DATE: September 24, 2004 EDITION NO.: 1

MANUFACTURER AND MODEL:

Make: Niton LLC

Tested Model: SLp 300

Source: 109Cd

Note: This PCS is also applicable to the equivalent model variations

indicated below, for the Lead-in-Paint K+L variable reading time
mode, in the XLi and XLp series:

XLi 300A, XLi 301A, XLi 302A and XLi 303A.

XLp 300A, XLp 301A, XLp 302A and XLp 303A.

XLi 700A, XLi 701 A, XLi 702A and XLi 703A.

XLp 700A, XLp 701A, XLp 7024, and XLp 703A.

Note: The XLi and XLp versions refer to the shape of the handle part of the instrument. The
differences in the model numbers reflect other modes available, in addition to Lead-in Paint modes.
The manufacturer states that specifications for these instruments are identical for the source, detector,
and detector electronics relative to the Lead-in-Paint mode.

FIELD OPERATION GUIDANCE

OPERATING PARAMETERS:
Lead-in-Paint K+L variable reading time mode.

XRF CALIBRATION CHECK LIMITS:

0.8 to 1.2 mg/cm? (inclusive)

The calibration of the XRF instrument should be checked using the paint film nearest 1.0 mg/cm®in
the NIST Standard Reference Material (SRM) used (e.g., for NIST SRM 2579, use the 1,02 mg/cm?

film).

If readings are outside the acceptable calibration check range, follow the manufacturer’s instructions
to bring the instruments into control before XRF testing proceeds.

SUBSTRATE CORRECTION:

For XRF results using Lead-in-Paint K+L variable reading time mode, substrate correction is not
needed for; Brick, Concrete, Drywall, Metal, Plaster, and Wood.
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INCONCLUSIVE RANGE OR THRESHOLD:
K+, MODE THRESHOLD
READING DESCRIPTION SUBSTRATE (mg/em2 )
Results not corrected for substrate basis on any substrate( Brick 1.0
Concrete 1.0
Drywall 1.0
Metal 1.0
Plaster 1.0
Wood 1.0

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

EVALUATION DATA SOURCE AND DATE:

This sheet is supplemental information to be used in conjunction with Chapter 7 of the HUD
Guidelines for the Evaluation and Control of Lead-Based Paint Hazards in Housing (“HUD
Guidelines”). Performance parameters shown on this sheet are calculated from the EPA/HUD
evaluation using archived building components. Testing was conducted in August 2004 on 133 testing
combinations. The instruments that were used to perform the testing had new sources; one
instrument’s was installed in November 2003 with 40 mCi initial strength, and the other’s was
installed on June 2004 with 40 mCi initial strength.

OPERATING PARAMETERS:

Performance parameters shown in this sheet are applicable only when properly operating the
instrument using the manufacturer’s instructions and procedures described in Chapter 7 of the HUD
Guidelines.

SUBSTRATE CORRECTION YALUE COMPUTATION:

Substrate corrections is not needed for brick, concrete, drywall, metal, plaster, or wood when using
Lead-in-Paint K+], variable reading time mode, the normal operating mode for these instruments, If
substrate correction is desired, refer to Chapter 7 of the HUD Guidelines for guidance on correcting
XREF results for substrate bias.

EVALUATING THE QUALITY OF XRF TESTING:

Randomly select ten testing combinations for retesting from each house or from two randomly
selected units in multifamily housing. Use the K+, variable time mode readings.

Conduct XRF retesting at the ten testing combinations selected for retesting,

Determine if the XRF testing in the units or house passed or failed by applying the steps below,
Compute the Retest Tolerance Limit by the following steps:
Determine the XRF results for the original and retest XRF readings. Do not correct the
original or retest results for substrate bias. In single-family housing a result is defined
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as the average of three readings. In multifamily housing, a result is a single reading.
Therefore, there will be ten original and ten retest XRF results for each house or for the
two selected units.

Calculate the average of the original XRF results and retest XRF result for each

testing combination.

Square the average for each testing combination.

Add the ten squared averages together. Call this quantity C.

Multiply the number C by 00072, Call this quantity D,

Add the number 0.032 to D. Call this quantity E.

Take the square root of E, Call this quantity F.

Multply F by .645. The result is the Retest Tolerance Limit.

Compute the average of all ten original XRF results,

Compute the average of all ten re-test XRF results.

Find the absolute difference of the two averages.

If the difference is less than the Retest Tolerance Limit, the inspection has passed the retest, If
the difference of the overall averages equals or exceeds the Retest Tolerance Limit, this
procedure should be repeated with ten new testing combinations. If the difference of the
overall averages in equal to or greater than the Retest Tolerance Limit a sccond time, then the
inspection should be considered deficient.

Use of this procedure is estimated to produce a spurious result approximately 1% of the time. That is,
results of this procedure will call for further examination when no exanination is warranted in
approximately 1 out of 100 dwelling units tested.

TESTING TIMES:

For the Lead-in-Paint K+L variable reading time mode, the instrument continues to read until it is
moved away from the testing surface, terminated by the user, or the instrument software indicates the
readings is complete. The following table provides testing time information for this testing mode,
The times have been adjusted for source decay, normalized to the initial source strengths as noted
above. Source strength and type of substrate will affect actual testing times. At the time of testing, the
instruments had source strengths of 26.6 and 36.6 mCi.

TESTING TIMES USING K+L. READING MODE (SECONDS)

Medtan for laboratory-menasured
All Data lead levels (mg/em?)
M 25" 78"
Substrate Percentile Medlan Percentile Pb<0,25 0.25<Ph<1.0 { 1.0<Pb
Wood .
Drywall ﬁ_4 11 19 1t 15 11
Metal 4 12 18 9 | 12 | 14
Brick I
Concrete 8 16 22 15 18 16
Plaster | _ | ]

CLASSIFICATION RESULTS:

XRF results are classified as positive if they are greater than or equal to the threshold and negative if
they are less than the threshold.
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DOCUMENTATION:

A document titled Methodology for XRF Performance Characteristic Sheeis provides an explanation
of the statistical methodology used to construct the data in the sheets, and provides empirical results
from using the recommended inconclusive ranges or thresholds for specific XRF instruments. For a
copy of this document call the National Lead Information Center Clearinghouse at 1-800-424-LEAD.,

This XRF Performance Characteristic Sheet was developed by the Midwest Research Institute
(MRI) and QuanTech, Inc., under a contract between MRI and the XRF manufacture. HUD has
determined that the information provided here is acceptable when used as guidance in
conjunction with Chapter 7, Lead-Based Paint Inspection, of HUD's Guidelines for the
Evaluation and Control of Lead-Based Paint Hazards in Housing.

IX Glossary

COMMON LEAD-BASED PAINT TERMS

Lead-Based Paint: Any paint, varnish, shellac, or other coating that contains lead equal to or greater
than 1.0 mg/cm” as measured by XRF or laboratory analysis, or 0.5 percent by dry weight {5,000 mg/g,

5,000 ppm, or 5,000 mg/kg) as measured by laboratoty analysis.

Lead-Based Paint Hazards: Housing conditions that cause human exposure to unsafe levels of lead
from peint. These conditions include deteriorated lead-based paint; friction, impact or chewable

painted surfaces; lead-contaminated dust; or lead-contaminated soil.

Physical Terms

Building Component: Any element of a building that may be paintcd or havc dust on its sutface, e.g.
walls, stair treads, floors, railings, doors, window sills, etc. Building component replacement: sce

Replacement.

Deteriorated Lead-Based Paint: Any lead-bascd paint coating on a damaged or deteriorated surface
or fixture, or any interior or exterior lead-based paint that is peeling, chipping, blistering, flaking,

worn, chalking, alligatoring, cracking, or otherwise becoming separated from the substrate,

Lead Hazard Evaluation

Clearance Examinatfion: Clearance is performed after hazard reduction, rehabilitation or
maintenance activities to determine if a unit is safe for occupancy. It involves a visual assessment,
analysis of dust and/or scil samples, and preparation of report. A certified risk assessor, paint
inspector, or clearance technician (independent fiom entity/individual conducting pain t stabilization

or hazard reduction) conducts clearance.

Paint Testing; Testing of specific surfaces, by XRF (x-ray fluorescence) or lab analysis, to determine
the lead content of these surfaces, performed by a certified lcad-based paint inspector or certified risk

a35ess0r.
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Risk Assessment: A comprehensive evaluation for lead-based paint hazards that includes paint
testing, dust and soil sampling, and a visual evaluation. The assessment report identifies lead hazards
and appropriate lead hazard reduction methods. A certified risk assessor must conduct the assessment.

Visual Assessment: A visual evaluation of interior and exterior painted surfaces to identify specific
conditions that contribute to lead-based paint hazards. A certified risk assessor or Housing Quality

Standards (HQS) inspector trained in visual assessment performs the assessment,

Lead Hazard Reduction

Abatement: A measure or set of measures designed to permanently (i.e. 20 or more years) eliminate
lead-based paint hazards or lead-based paint. Abatement strategies include the removal of lead-based
paint, enclosure, encapsulation, replacement of building components coated with lead-based paint,
removal of lead-contaminated dust, and removal of lead-contaminated soil or overlaying of soil with a
durable covering such as asphalt (grass and sod are considered interim control measures). All of these
strategies require preparation; cleanup; waste disposal; post abatement clearance testing; record
keeping; and, if applicable, monitoring. See also Complete abatement and Interim Controls.

Complete Abatement: Abatement of all lead-based paint inside and outside a dwelling or building
and reduction of any lead-contaminated dust or soil hazards. All of these strategies require
preparation; cleanup; waste disposal; post abateinent clearance testing; record keeping; and, if
applicable, reevaluation and on-going monitoring. See also Abatement.

Cleaning: The process of using a HEPA vacuum and wet cleaning agents to remove leaded dust; the
process includes removal of bulk debris from the work area. OSHA prohibits the use of compressed
air to clean lead-contaminated dust from a surface.

Encapsulation: Any covering or coating that acts as a barrier between lead-based paint and the
environment, the durability of which relies on adhesion and the integrity of the existing bonds between
multiple layers of paint and between the substrate. See also enclosure.

Lead-based Paint Hazard Control: Activities to control and eliminate lead-based paint hazards,
including interim controls, abatement, and complete abatement.

Maintenance: Work intended to maintain adequate living conditions in a dwelling, which has the
potential to disturb lead-based pain or paint that is suspected of being lead-based.

Paint Film Stabilization: An interim control method that stabilizes painted surfaces and addressed
the underlying cause of deterioration. Steps include repairing defective surfaces, wet scraping,
priming, and repainting surfaces coated with deteriorated lead-based paint; paint film stabilization
includes cleanup and clearance,

Reevaluation: In lead hazard control work, the combination of a visual assessment and collections of
environmental samples performed by a certified risk assessor to determine if a previously implemented
lead-based paint hazard control measure is still effective and if the dwelling remains lead-safe. Also

known as re-inspection.
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Replacement: Replacement of existing features can be an appropriate abatement technique if the
feature is deteriorated beyond repair or if the feature is of minor significance.

Treatment; In residential lead-based paint hazard control work, any method designed to control lead-
based paint hazards. Treatment includes interim controls, abatement, and removal. Hazardous waste
(treatment) is a method, technique, or process (such as neutralization) that is designed to change the
physical, chemical, or biological character or composition of hazardous waste to neutralize it; render it
non-hazardous; recover it; make it safer to transport, store, or dispose; or allow for easier recovery,

storage, or volume reduction.

Lead Poisoning

Environmental Intervention Blood Lead Level: The level of lead in blood that requires intervention

in a child under age six. This is defined as a blood lead levcl of 20 ug/dL (micrograms per deciliter) of
whole blood or above for a single test, or blood levets of 15-19 ug/dL in two tests taken at least three
months apart.

LEAD-BASED PAINT - KEY UNITS OF MEASUREMENT

ug (Microgram): A microgram is 1/1000™ of a milligram (or one millionth of a gram). To put this
unit into perspective, a penny weighs 2 grams. To get a microgram, you would need to divide the
penny into 2 million pieces. A microgram is one of those two million pieces.

ft2 (Square foot): One square foot is equal to an area that has a length of one foot (12 inches) and a
width of one foot (12 inches).

ug/dL.: Micrograms per deciliter used to measure the level of lead in children’s blood to establish

whether the intervention is needed. A deciliter (1/10"" of a liter) is a little less than half a cup. As
noted above, a microgram is the same weight as one penny divided into two million parts.

mg/em2: Milligrams per square centimeter, used for paint by XRF machines.
Percent: Percent by weight, used usually for lead-based paint (1 percent = 10,000 ug/gram).

ppm: Parts per million by weight, equivalent to ug/gram (10,000 ppm = 1 percent). Used to measure
lead in paint and soil.

LEAD-BASED PAINT STANDARDS
Paint - Definition of Lead-Based Paint
Paint that contains at [east:
e 1 milligram per centimeters square (mg/cm?) of lead (EPA/HUD);
e 1.0 milligram per centimeters square (mg/cm?) of lead Georgia Childhood Lead Poisoning
Prevention Program (GA CLPPP);

e 0.5 percent lead; or
* 5,000 parts per million (ppm) lead by dry weight.
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Aghustas Abatement * Lead Based Paint Abatement + Mold Remedietion + Builiing Demolition

September 14, 2009
FAX NO. 478.741,3864

Mullis and Griffin Properties
PO BOX 6292
Macon GA 31208

PROPOSAL FOR: Lead Baged Paint Abalement
as per GEC Report MCE-09-3837-A

dated April 09, 2009

Dear Mr, Griffin;

Superiar Environmental Force, a licensed contractor, proposes to provide trained cerfified
supervisors and laborers with approved equipment and malerial required for the [ead based
paint abatement at the above referenced site as per GEC Report MCE-08-3837-A.

SCOPE OF WORK

1. Lead basag paint abatemant prics $10,800.00

(478) 986-1460 + Fax (478) 586-1410 r Support@SupedorEnvironmentalus « P.O. Box 1447 + Gray, GA 31032
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Mr. Mike Griffin
September 14, 2008
Page Two

Please be advised thal all of our work practices and operating procedures will be in accordance
with the applicable federal, state and local regulations, laws and ordinances governing lead
based paint siabilizetion a8 described and enumerated below

1. Provide praof of “occurrence based” general liability, worker's compensation and
automobile insurance coverage,
2, Obtain all required permits and make all required notifications to federal, state and

local agencies.

Post waming signs and barrler tape to demarcate the work area(s).
Parform work within a "regulated area” as defined by OSHA.
Utilize wet work procedures to minimize release.

Dispose of the properly packaged waste in the appropriate landfill.

@ o b

The Owner/Consultant shail provide the following:

1, Cleatr, unobstrucied access to the work area.

2. Access to water (standard “hose bib” gonnection).

3. Access to electricity (standard 110V recepiacie).

4. Visual tlearance only — No Interior wipe clearances necessary.
5. Component replacement after abatement.

The handling of hazardous waste is excluded from this project except materials that are
describad in the projett scope of work.

Submitted by - MATTISON DEES

MD; jmh

B83/83



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the date set out below, I filed the origina! and one copy of the

foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order and served a true and correct copy of the

foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order, in the Matter of: Mullis and Griffin Properties

d/b/a North Napier Apartments Docket Number: TSCA-04-2009-2634(b), to the addressees

listed below.

Kevin Woodruff

Lead and Children’s Health
Management Section

U.S. EPA Region 4

61 Forsyth Street, S.W.
Atlanta, GA 30303

Robert Caplan

Office of Environmental Accountability
U.S. EPA, Region 4

61 Forsyth St., SW

Atlanta, GA 30303

Mr. Mike Griffin

North Napier Apartments
4017 Napier Avenue 16B
Macon, GA 31204

Date: Q" Qa -0 ?

Docket No. TSCA-04-2009-2634(b)

(via EPA's internal mail)

(via EPA's internal mail)

(via Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested)

A. Bullok, onal

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4
Atlanta Federal Center

61 Forsyth St., SW

Atlanta, GA 30303

(404) 562-9511

13




EPA ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE CONTROL NUMBER FORM

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE ORIGINATING OFFICE:
{Attach a copy of the final order and transmittal leiter to Defendant/Respondent)

Saundl Wilson

This form was originated by: on
{Name) (Date)
in the Reglon 4, ORC, OFEA “_(404) 562 9504
(OfTice} (Telephone Number)
l:] Non-SF Judicial Order/Consent Decree &l Administrative Order/Consent Agreement
USAO COLLECTS FMO COLLECTS PAYMENT

l: Oversight Billing - Cost Package required:
Sent with bil T

:] Not sent with bill
| Other Receivable
]

l: SF Judicial Order/Consent Decree
DOJ COLLECTS

Oversight Billing - Cost Package not required
D This is an original debt E This is a modification

PAYEE: {Y\ul[ls + (‘)”‘gﬂ rl)ropw‘fw Aﬂ)/a N(Nl/{:\ MOJPJW -ém,(msj'ﬁ

(Name of person and/or Company/Municipality making the payment) N

The Total Dollar Amount of the Receivable: § Ili’.
(X installments, attach schedule of amounts and respective due dates. See Other side of this form.)

The Case Docket Number: TSch ¢ 2809 2434 (L)

The Site Specific Superfund Account Number:

The Designated Regional/Headquarters Program Office:

L —
The IFMS Accounts Receivable Control Number is: Date
If you have any questions, pleasecall:_ __of the Financial Management Section at: _._

—_—
DISTRIBUTION:

A. JUDICIAL ORDERS: Copies of this form with an attached copy of the front page of the FINAL JUDICIAL ORDER
should be mailed to:

1. Debt Tracking Offhcer 2, Originating Office (EAD)
Enviroumentai Eafoccement Section LN Designated Program Office
of Justice RM 1647
P.O. Box 761!, Benjain Franklin Station
Washington, D.C. 20844

B. ADMINISTRATIVE ORDERS: Copies of this form with an atiached copy of the front page of the Administrative Ovder should be to:

1. Originating Office 3 Designated Program Office
pa Regional Hegring Clerk 4. Regional Counsel (EAD)



